

Anthony Serafini

From: David Duarte
Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2017 2:00 PM
To: Anthony Serafini
Cc: OET-SCB; John Kennedy; ELB-Coordination-Info
Subject: FW: STA #0630-EX-ST-2017 Conditional Concurrence
Attachments: 0630-EX-ST-2017.rtf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Due By: Monday, July 24, 2017 10:00 AM
Flag Status: Flagged

From: FAB [mailto:FAB@ntia.doc.gov]
Sent: Friday, June 16, 2017 11:59 AM
To: David Duarte <David.Duarte@fcc.gov>
Cc: FAB <FAB@ntia.doc.gov>; John Kennedy <John.Kennedy@fcc.gov>; OET-SCB <OET-SCB@fcc.gov>; Melz, Gregory <GMelz@ntia.doc.gov>; McFall, John <JMcFall@ntia.doc.gov>
Subject: STA #0630-EX-ST-2017 Conditional Concurrence

NTIA conditionally concurs with the FCC STA request on behalf of Orbital ATK, Incorporated for WFF, VA. during the period 25 July 2017 thru 25 January 2018, under the following condition(s):

1. This STA is limited to telemetry and tracking operations for a single Antares launch to support the delivery of Cygnus capsule to Low Earth Orbit, as part of the NASA Commercial Orbital Transportation Services (COTS) program. This STA will expire as soon as the launch has been completed or 25 January 2018, whichever occurs first. Any future launches shall submit applications to the FCC to be re-coordinated with the NTIA.
2. All transmissions in the band 2200-2290 MHz shall comply with national and international power flux density limits, unless otherwise coordinated and agreed. PFD analysis and exceedances shall be provided in the FCC application and provided to the NTIA for US Government review.
3. Orbital ATK shall be aware that future non-federal launches will be considered on a case-by-case basis, especially for requests in the band 2200-2290 MHz, and Orbital ATK shall have no expectations that future launches will be approved.
4. Due to potential harmful interference to naval activities, Orbital ATK RF operations plan shall be submitted, at least 60 days prior to planned launch date, to the Naval Surface Warfare Center, Dahlgren Division (NSWCDD), Mr. James Moneyhon 540.653.3477, or james.moneyhon@navy.mil, for assessment. In order to mitigate the potential for interference with these naval and DoD activities, four blackout zones (BOZs) shall be assumed as follows: (1) 1500 nautical mile radius centered at 22N160W; (2) 1500 nautical mile radius centered at 33.25N119.57W; (3) 1500 nautical mile radius centered at 4.11N175.2W; and (4) 1500 nautical mile radius centered at 57.46N152.38W. These BOZs shall be implemented, unless otherwise coordinated and agreed to by the Naval Surface Warfare Center, Dahlgren Division (NSWCDD). Orbital ATK must also comply with any and all restrictions that may be levied by the Naval Surface Warfare Center, Dahlgren Division (NSWCDD).
5. 60 days prior to transmitting at Wallops Island, Virginia, Orbital ATK shall coordinate and schedule their operations with Scott Galbraith (vincent.s.galbraith@nasa.gov, 301.286.5089, NASA GSFC SMO) and Felipe Arroyo (felipe.arroyo-1@nasa.gov, 757.824.1623, NASA WFF SMO). Orbital ATK is required to provide, as a minimum, launch date/time/window and planned first- and second- stage trajectories, transmission frequencies with associated earth stations and duration/cut- off times.
6. As soon as possible, but no later than 60 business days prior to the planned launch, Orbital ATK is required to provide, as a minimum, launch date/time/window and planned first- and second-stage trajectories, transmission

frequencies with associated earth stations and duration/cut-off time to Jimmy Nguyen (jimmy.nguyen@us.af.mil, AFSMO), Felipe Arroyo (felipe.arroyo-1@nasa.gov, NASA/WFF), Scott Galbraith (vincent.s.galbraith@nasa.gov, NASA/GSFC), Kevin Vipavetz (kevin.g.vipavetz@nasa.gov, NASA/LaRC), NOAA Satellite Operations Control Center (philip.l.whaley@noaa.gov), Johnnie Best, (johnnie.w.best1@navy.mil, NMSC) and Cathy Sham (catherine.c.sham@nasa.gov). In the event of last-minute changes, 48-hour notice is required.

7. The STOP BUZZER POC information for launch operations shall be provided to NTIA (bmitchell@ntia.doc.gov). This phone shall be manned 24/7.
8. Orbital ATK shall keep a log of all transmissions in the band 2200-2290 MHz that shall be provided to the NTIA after the mission. This log shall include, at a minimum, the date, time, frequency, e.i.r.p density, pointing direction of the antennae. The log shall be provided to the following NTIA personnel no later than three (3) weeks after completion of the mission: Brandon Mitchell at bmitchell@ntia.doc.gov; Ed Drocella at edrocella@ntia.doc.gov
9. Orbital ATK will provide the launch time-of-the-day when it becomes available (as promised by Mark Mills at Orbital ATK) to Mr. Jeremiah Sullivan (jeremiah.sullivan@noaa.gov) in order to then assess the potential for interference to the BLOCK 5D-3 network at that time.
10. Future use of 2239.386-2241.614 MHz/2M23F1D will be difficult to support by Air Force. Orbital ATK will contact the Air Force Spectrum Management Office (AFSMO), Jimmy Nguyen (Email: jimmy.nguyen@us.af.mil), to work with AFSMO on using other frequencies for future launch missions.

Jonathan Moak
Telecommunications Specialist
National Telecommunications and Information Administration
U.S. Department of Commerce
Herbert C. Hoover Building
1401 Constitution Ave., N.W.
Washington, DC 20230
Voice: 202-482-5034
Fax: 202-482-1133

